
DEC03'iapfi 3^16 DftS
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834

7/ ̂

-r I u /zAox 1ICC Division OF PlanningTelephone; (603) 271-2155 ^
Christopher t. Sununu 271 -2615 Division of Energy

Governor , ■ \ f www.nh.gov/osi

December 4, 2019

His excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REOUESTFJ) action

Aulhori/',e the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE eontracl with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $1 17,140.00 to supplement the
Agency's Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January 1, 2020, through September 30, 2020,
upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance FY2020

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $1 1 7,140.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with ehildren, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work.

fhe Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding will allow the Community
Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating system
improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year which begins on Januaiy 1, 2020. OSI
estimates that approximately eighteen (18) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as a result
of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

Respect fufixsnbmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Director

G&C 12/18/2019

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/26/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Office of Strategic Initiatives

1.2 State Agency Address
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 ContractorName

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 ContractorPhone

Number

(603)752-7001

1.6 Account Number

01-02-02-024010-77050000-

074-500587 02BWP20

1.7 Completion Date

Scptember30,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$117,140.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager

1.10 StateAgency TelephoneNumber
(603)271-2155

1.11 ContraietoiSigna 1.12 Name and Title of ContractorSignatory
Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stateof>^jij\U*wv^y\<<^Countyof

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.1 l,andacknowledgedthats/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

l.l-i! Signat Justice of the Peace
CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public

State of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires Oecemoer 19,2023

^r.i.35-^^me an j^Tillc~of Notary or Justice of the Peace
(A.oc\ir\

14' Siai^gency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Date: (xrc A (VA We^ re. cfo
Administration, Division ofPersonnel Ofapplicable) '1.16 ̂ ^proval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division ofrersonnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

. 17 Approva 1 by the Auomey Genera 1 (Fomi, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

.18 Approval by the Govcmorand Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The StaleofNew Hampshire,acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractoridentified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,

and the Contractorshall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly descnT5ed in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Councilor the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on thedatethe
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
becomeeffective.the State shall haveno liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractorforany costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractormust complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary,all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, thecontinuanceofpaymenlshereunder,are

contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractornotice of such termination. The State
shall not be required totransferfundsfrom anyotheraccount
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, methodofpaymcnt,andtermsof
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for a 11
expenses, of whatcvernature incurred by the Contractorin the
perfonnancc hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractorotherlhan the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the rî t to offset from any a mounts
otherwise payable to the Contractorunderthis Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement tothe
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder,exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractorshall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation ordutyuponthe Contractor,
including, butnot limited to,civil rî ts andequalopportunity
laws. This mayinclude the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech,can
communicate with, receive information from,and convey

information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term ofthis Agreement, the Contractorshall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap,sexualorientation,or nationalorigin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractorshall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations ofthe United States DcpartmentofLabor(41
C.F.R. Fai^60), andwithanyrules, regulations and guidelines
as the StaleofNew Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractorfurtheragrees to
permit the Stateor United States access to anyofthe
Contractor'sbooks, records and accounts forthe purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations andordcrs,
and the covenants, terms and conditions ofthis Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractorshall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qua lified to perform the Services, and sha 11 be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so underall applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractorshallnot hire,
and shall not pemiit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofthis
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The ContractingOfficer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative, in the event

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the ContractingOfficer's decision shall be finalforthe State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractorsha 11 constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Ap^ement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be madeunderthis
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractorduring the
period from thedateofsuch notice until such time asthe State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall neverbe paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set offagainstany other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractora ny damages the State suffers by reason of any
Eventof Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursucany of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data"shaUmeanall
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae,surveys,maps,charts,soundrecordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computerprograms, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,papers,anddocuments,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which hasbeen received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stateupondemandorupon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approvaloftheState.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractorsha 11 deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days afterthe date of
termination,a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned,to
and including the date oftermination.The form, subject
matter, content, and numberof copies of the Termination
Report sha 11 be identica 1 to those of a ny Fina 1 Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

theperformanceofthisAgreement the Contractoris in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members sha 11 have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, woilcers' compensation
orother emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractorshall not assign, or otherwise transferany
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services sha II be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consentofthe State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractorshalldefend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which maybe
claimed to arise outoO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Stale.This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive theterminationoflhis Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractorshall, at its sole expense,obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
a ssignec to obta in a nd ma inta in in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1 .OOO.OOOperoccurrcncc and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement va lue of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subpara graph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsementsapproved foruse in the
State of New Hampshire by theN.H. Department of
Insurance,and issued by insurers licensed in theStateof New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contraciorshall furnish to iheContractingOfficer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
ofinsurance forail insurance required underthis Agreement.
Contractor shaU also furnish to the Contra cling Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for a 11 renewa l(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insuranceandany renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the ContractingOfficer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contracioragrees,
certifies and warrants thattheContractoris in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter281 -A, Contraciorshall
maintain,and require any subcontractororassi^ee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to

undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contraciorshall
furnish the ContractingOfficer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
mannerdescribed in N.H. RSA chapter281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
anysubcontractororemployeeof Contractor.which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services underthis Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No fa ilure by the Sta te to
enforce any provisions hereof a fterany Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default,oranysubsequentEventofOefault. No express

failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and a 11 of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4,herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybeamended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aftcrapprovalof such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemorand
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approvalis required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favorofanyparty.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall notbe
construed to conferany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headingsthroughoui the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in noway be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions ofthis Agreement will remain in full forceand
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understandingbetween the parties, andsupersedesall prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

EXHIBIT A

Scope of Services

1. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., hereinafter "the Contractor," agrees to utilize the
Building Weatherization Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have
their origin in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), to provide eligible
clients with weatherization services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which
meet the requirements and standards for LIHEAP weatherization work as modified and approved in the
FY20 New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work completed using BWP funds will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and will be
guided and implemented as directed by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) in this contract and,
from time to time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other communications. The Contractor agrees to
revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate instructions from OSI.

Contractor agrees to incor3X)rate changes to the NH Building Weatherization Program as prescribed by
OSI to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all weatherization services in a
manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low
income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period will commence on January 1,2020, and will have a completion date of
September 30,2020 (a nine-month period), subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

3. BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for health and safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in other words, where tho-e is no money for the installation of heahh
and safety measures - then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is not
brought down to below 1.

4. No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification forthe use of those fiinds will be
required by OSI prior to reimbursement.

5. During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY20 BWP allocation by $6,500. OSI understands
that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number due to the
unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but OSI expects to see monthly BWP payment requests
from the Contractor in order to monitorBWP spending progress. Unit completions will be done to the
standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contract, and the NH
^h? Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. OSI resen'es the right to review progress under this contract at any
time and may utilize information from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds to be
expended.

CFDA; 93.568 Initials ^ ̂̂"7^
Grant: G-2001NHUEA Date flll^/ll
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b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by September 30,
2020.

6. Effective April 1,2015, all work performed under the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's Quality Woik Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, so is not subject to all of the same specifications
and requirements as WAP work, Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which provides clients
with weatherization outcomes similarto those achieved under WAP guidance whenever possible. The
occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document (Exhibit A).

7. Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization work should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 200% of the federal poverty

guidelines (FPG). However, because the LIHEAP eligibility income ceiling is higher than the WAP
ceiling (LIHEAP funds may be expended on clients with incomes at or below 60®/o ofNew Hampshire's
median income, which, in 2020, is an amount higher than 200% FPG), Contractor may utilize BWP
funds with clients who meet the LIHEAP income guidelines. If the project is to be in any part funded
using WAP funds, however, then the client's income must be no greater than 200% FPG.

8. BWP money may be "leveraged" (used in combination with) any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, that project must be completed to
WAP standards and be approved as "WAP complete, ready for reimbursement" by a certified Quality
Control Inspector.

9. BWP money may be used for either full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alone. Contractor is obligated under this contract to expend at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.

a. The PY20 BWP package of forms (see item 12b, below) forreporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:

i. for restoration of heating services (repairor replacement of inoperable heating
equipment),

ii. for prevention of heating system service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade. ^

10. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project is S8,000. If the BWP
budget for any one project must exceed that amount, a waiver must be received from OSI. OSI will
review all waiver requests promptly and will provide approval when possible. However, applying the
expenditure guidelines in the FY20 NH LIHEAP State Plan, OSI will not approve total BWP
expenditures on any one dwelling weatherization project that exceed $12,000. This total is cumulative,
summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to that dwelling.

11. BWP production includes:

a. Weatherization upgrades which are commensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BP!-certified) Building
Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the woriyjian (the

CFDA; 93.568 Initials
Grant: G-2001NHL1EA Date ////^//^
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energy conservation measures — ECMs — to be installed) using either the "benefit/cost ratio"
(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilities' Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
"savings to investment ratio" (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used when the project will include at least one ECM which is to
be paid for with WAP funds.

b. Final inspections which determine:
i. whether the project's work plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the

methodology - B/C or SIR - used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre-weatherization condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate work plan was ftiMy and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weatherization
outcome.

c. In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling, that project
must be completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the installation of only those
measures which individually achieve a SIR equal to or greater than 1, the use of a certified
Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. In projects where no WAP money is involved, the final BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BPI certification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

e. Because BWP money is not WAP money, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades
to dwellings which have received WAP-funded or BWP-funded upgrades since September of
1994 by presenting a waiver request to OSI. However

i. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weatherization services at all;

ii. care should be taken, as always, to avoid even the appearance of favoritism;
iii. WAP money cannot be part of the leveraging done on re-weatherized dwellings which

received the benefit of at least some WAP dollars in the first round of weatherization
work done;

iv. all BWP-funded second visits to previously weatherized dwellings, whetherthat
weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from OSI.

12. The tracking of BWPjobs will include:
a. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will

utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., even if no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not used.

b. The use of a separate BWPreimburaementrequestpackage/spreadsheetsuppliedbyOSI. All
jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on the BWP set of
forms. If a particular job also includes the use of any WAP money, then that job will have to be
submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement request forms
already in use. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization fundingsourcesmanagedby OSI, that job must be submitted to OSI twice in
order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.

13. This agreement consists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E, F, G, H, I, and J. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

CFDA: 93.568 Initials
Grant; G-2001NHLIEA Date

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

EXHIBIT B

Methods and Conditions of Payment

In consideration of the satisfactoiy performance of the services set forth in Exhibit A, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., up to the total sumof:

$117,140 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$  5,857 is the maximum to be spent on BWP related administrative costs,
$ 1 1 1,283 (the balance) to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to OSI. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be made
in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis;
limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the puipose of the program. The Contractormust make
timely payments to (sub)contractors iri accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit a
payment request to OSI for each month of the contract period using the forms to be provided by OSI for
that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at OSI no later than the 15* day of each
month or the first business day following the 15"'day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit completions do not meet
expected production goals.

OSI will also be allowed, as a function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total "Contracted Amount" as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

CFDA: 93.568 Page I of 1 Initials
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

EXHIBIT C

Special Provisions

1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1,2002 (Weatherization Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSl) reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal
including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency
personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from
present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New
Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weatherization Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least
every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters
written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to OSl within one month
of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those of 55,000 or less) awarded by OSl to the Contractor shall
allow OSl, DOE, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any
duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract forthe purpose of
making audits, examinations, exceipts, and transcriptions."

4. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals.

5. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by OSl and the Contractor
for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the fmal expenditure report or, for awards that are
renewed quarterly or annually, from the dale ofthe submission of the quarterly or annual financial
report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.

6. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All fmal required reports and reimbursement requests shall
be submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement
Block 1.7).

CFDA: 93.568 Initials 7^
Grant; G.2001NHL1EA Date IIII6IH

Page I of 2



7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance."

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKJBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction orrepair shall include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act
(18 use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any pereon employed in the construction, completion orrepair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to OSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D- Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards.)"
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151 -5160oftheDnig-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 etseq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections Ml and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988(Pub.L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January31,1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractois) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using th is form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days affer such conviction;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
Exhibits D thru H
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ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendardays of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such puqjoses by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance ofwork done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county. State, zip code) (list each location)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check O ifthere are workplaces on filethat are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. January 1,2020, to Septcmbcr30,2020

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive OfBcer

Name and Title of Authorized Contraclpr Representative

Con^ctor Representative Signature Date

Initials
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
'319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
BWP Program

Contract Period January 1,2020, to September30, 2020
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by oron behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not loss than $ 10,000 and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

Coht^tor Representative'Signature

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

/DntPiContractor Name

Exhibits D thru H
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessaiy, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person fnam participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OSI
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primaiy participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or hasbecome erroneousby reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lowertier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lowertier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debamed,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1 1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently dd^arred, suspended, proposed for debamient, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract undera public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debamient, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the protective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covercdTransac.tiops. I \

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer
Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. t!jl^l
Contractor Name Date

Contra
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABIUTIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representativeas identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

Contractb^epresentative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, PartC
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$ 1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

ConmaAor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. iilish
Contractor Name Date

Inilials
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OFCOMFLIANCENONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED

PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Projea (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-Countv Community Action Program. Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy
Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-
438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended,
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on
the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of. or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant
receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In thecaseof any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Eneigy.

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting f rom Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground ofrace, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of condensation and use of facilities.

Subreclplent Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
Exhibit I
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subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or aetivities developed as a
resultof the Applicant's receipt ofFederal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (I) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of theprogram where necessary to permit effectivepaiticipationby beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location ofexistingor proposed facilities connected with theprogram and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use ofFederal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of infomiation pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal gran ts, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended aftcrthe
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certincation

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be ftimished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
60 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570
603-752-7001

Jeanne Robillard, CEO Signature ^ _Date Illl5h
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New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITV
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the awaid is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 110 {ReponingSuhaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subawaid or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA programnumber for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of p^ormance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subawardand Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability ap^ Transparency Act.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

(ContractSSRepresentativeSignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

(ContractorName) (Date)

Contractorinitials:

Date: //// ̂ j
Page 1 of 2
Award #G-2001NHLIEA, CFDA 93i68



New Hampshire Office of Strategic initiatives

STANDARD EXHIBITJ

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.TheDUNSnumberforyourentityis: O"?

2. In your business or oiganization'sprcceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S.»federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

10 YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO yes

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foDowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount:

Contractor initials:

Date:
Page 2 of!
Award #G-200l NHUE^ CFDA 93.568



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 63020

Certificate Number: 0004483439

SI IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

ft , Board Chair of Tri-Countv Community Action Program . Inc.
(name) ** (corporation name)

(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly
(state)

elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on ioj , such authority

(date)

to be in force and effect until September 30. 2020.
(contract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:
Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer

(name) (position)

(name) (position)

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(state of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WJTOESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this
/*? day of November. 2019. ^ ^

y
Board) Chair

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Coos ^

On this 15 day of November. 2020, before me, Christina Morin the undersigned Officer,
personally appeared Sandv Alonzo who acknowledged her/himself to be the Board Chair

of Tri-Countv Comminutv Action Program. Inc. , a corporation and that she/he as such Board
Chrair being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

CHRISTINA MORIN. Notaiy Public
State of New Hampshire

MyCommlsston Expires Decembci is. Public/Justice of the Pea'ce

Commission Expiration Date: /a j



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

I7FYI9 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
takes the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte, and Chief Operating Officer

(COO) Regan L. Pride arc hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into contracts
with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed
necessary and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments and
amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deem necessary, desirable or
appropriate for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and effective until June 30",
2020.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on June 25''',
2019

NameTSandy Alonpo
Title: Board Cha

Name: Cathy Oanway
Title: Board Treasurer



j\C:ORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OOfYYYY)

07/11/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORT/LNT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

HAME*^ Karen Shaughnessy
/Kr.n. {603)669-3218 (603)645^331
an^ees- kshaugfviessy@cross8gency.eom

MSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAK t

MSURERA: Philadelphia Ins Co

MSUREO

Tri.Coonty Community Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

MSURERO - ^ttlte Slate Health Care and Human Services Self-

WSURERC:

WSURER D:

WSURER E;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWfTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WfTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EXP

r?m
POUCV EFF

TYPE OF MSURANCE iv^ POLICY NUMeCR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAJMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN1. AOGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLCY I I JECT I I LOC
OTHER:

X

PHPK2003S16

fMM/DD/VYYY)

07/01/2019

(MM/OO/YYYYI

07/01/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACETORERTEC
PREWSeS fEi oeaicTtno)

MEO EXP [Any one [Woni

PERSONAL A AOV WJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1.000.000

100.000

5,000

1,000.000

3,000,000

3,000.000

AUTOHOBLE LIAS&JTY

ANY AUTOX

COM8INEO SMGLE LIMIT
/E» »eddenl1

1,000,000

BOOILY MJURY (P«r pwMnl

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2003523 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 BODILY INAIRY (Per •cddvnl]

PROPERTY DAMAGE
,lPef.»cdd«nJ}_

Underinsurod motorist 1,000,000

X

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LtAB

OCCUR

CLAiMS-MAOE

EAc"t7oCCURR?NCE 2,000,000

PHUB683002 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 2,000,000

DEO 1 X RETENTION S 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABUTY

ANY PROPRETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTA/E
OFFICERMEMSER EXCLUDED?
(M«nd«4eiY NH)
If yet, dMoHb* under
OESCRPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

m HCHS20190000117 (3a.) NH 02/01/2019 02^1/2020 EX. EACHACCIOENT
1,000,000

El. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

Proflesional Liatxiity
PHPK2003516 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 Each Occurrence

Aggregate

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlllenal Remark* Schedule, may be alUchtd H mere apace It requlredl

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hall

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRtBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

Q 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Alt rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT



Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of professional association

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. aRTiFiEU I'UBUC accountants
Berlin, New Hampshire wolfeboro • north conv;w

DO\'ER • concord

smniAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2018, for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30. 2018 and 2017. and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2017
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated November 10. 2017. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year end^d June 30.
2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived. '

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
October 19, 2018. on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance...

October 19, 2018

North Conway. New Hampshire



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

Building refinance costs, net

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2018

1.329,038
1,156.657

212.207

87.569

25.640

2.811,111

12.812.689

(5.203,324)

7.609.365

706.765

12,705

719.470

516,022

142,733

4,445

237,276

203,121

187,508

131,868

191,069

387.168

2.001.230

5.386,642
6,226

7,396,098

2,926,057

817,791

3,743,848

2017

505,700

1,326,994
205.804
65,641

45.345

2,149.484

13,544,469
(5,317.470)

8,226.999

942.687

13.591

956.278

$ 11,139.946 $ 11,332,761

671,434
687,809

4,057

518.447

242,545

196,862
107.627

197,548

645,311

3,171.660

5.264.436
12,670

8,438.766

2,191,395

702.600

2.893.995

$ 11,139,946 $ 11.332.761

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INH AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and contracts

Program funding
Utility programs

In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundraising

Rental Income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of properly
Forgiveness of debt
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services;

Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation

Volunteer

Workforce Development

Alcohol and Other Drugs
Carroll County Denial
Support Center
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Activities;
Gerreral and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

2016

Total

2017

Total

$  14,097,629

1,259,037
1,079.361
351,187

116.928

59.536

679,112
348

48,487

81.938

$  211,457

278,297

$  14,309,086
1.259,037

1,079.361
,351,187

395,225

59,536

679.112

348

48.487

81.938

$ 12.644,557

1.708.487

972,359

436.874

497.735

42.421

847.380

270

(16.685)
25,912

4.461

17.773.563 489.754 18.263.317 17,163.771

374,563 (374,563) . .

18.148.126 115.191 18.263,317 17.163.771

922.701

2.481,916

760.009

879.729
122.941
394,252

444.581

642.637

276i172

577.783

7.480,943

1,142.818

176.511

-

922,701

2,481.916

760.009

879,729

122,941

394,252

444,581
642,637

276,172

577.783

7.480.943

1.142,818
176.511

825.517

2.312.665

735.925

1,063.996

121.543

402.576

1,165,000

542,920

265,052

554,509

6,276,570

1.026,070
167.528

16.302.993 16.302,993 15,459.871

1.102,448

8.023

•
1.102.446

8.023

1.213.425

4.873

1.110,471 1.110.471 1,218.298

17.413.464 17.413,464 16.678.169

734.662 115.191 849,653 485.602

2,191.395 702,600 2.893.995 2.408.393

%  2,926.057 $  817.791 $  3.743.848 %  2,893,995

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY CQMMUNtTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment financed by lor>g-term debt

Purchase of properly and equipment financed by capital lease

Fixed assets donated

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  849,853 $  485,602
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 464,370 492,141
Donation of property and equipment • (224.685)
Loss on disposal of property {48.487) 16,685
Forgiveness of debt (25,912)

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 170,337 (78,676)
Pledges receivable (6,403) 23,615
inventories

f
(21,928) ' 23.239

Prepaid expenses 19,705 (4,353)
Restricted cash 235,922 (154,926)

(Decrease) Increase in liabiiities:
Accounts payable (281.171) (157,079)
Accrued compensated absences (39,424) (51,698)
Accrued salaries (9.374) 20,697
Accrued expenses 24.261 13,863
Refundable advances (6.479) (35.781)
Other liabilities (258,143) 134.401

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1.093.039 477.133

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property 278,972 26,750
Purchases of property and equipment (141,335) (181.113)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 137,637 (154.363)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayment on demand rtote payable (90,412) (192,432)
Repayment of long-term debt (312,870) (210,808)
Repayment of capital lease obligations (4,056) (3,636)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (407.338) (406.876)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 823.338 (84,106)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 505,700 589,806

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  1,329,038 $  505,700

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORAflATION:

Cash paid during the year for;
Interest $  182,514 $  208.781

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

S  14.867

S  5,889

18,830 S

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving Cods. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

(}i^'

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FY2020

COOS COUNTY

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

CARROLL COUNTY

Anne Barber

GRAFTON COUNTY

Linda Massimilla

Treasurer

Cathy Conway Michael Dewar Tricia Garisson

Secretary

Gary Coulombe
Vice Chair

Dino Scala

Richard McLeod

Karolina Brzozowska

CEO; Jeanne L, Robillard COO: Regan Pride CFO: Randall S. Pilotte
30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001
www.tccap.orQ FB(p)TriCountvConnmunitvActionProQram



TRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving Co6s. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

PY20 Building Weatherlzation Program Key Personnel

Jeanne Roblllard CEO $115,000

Regan Pride COG $70,000

Randall Pilotte CFO $75,000

Gerald Mliiiken, Jr. Weatherlzation, Workforce

Programs, and Cornerstone
Division Director

$52,000

Nathan Mills Division Manager $45,011.20



Jeanne L. Robillard

rORE STBEI^CTHiS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PHOFESSIOIVAL EXPERIENCE

Tri*Coiiiitj CommnniSy Action Prognuns, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer

Berlin. BTH SOiS - cmrrotU MTF omployM»*otU

Tri«Coiinty Community Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin. NB 2016-3018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Conniy Cooamnnity Action Program*. Inc.
IHvision Director: TCCAP Prevention Services
Berlin. NH 2015-2016
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services, oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fiindcrs
and agency; develop fimdraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Coanty Community Action Programs. Inc.
Progrom/Division Director: Support Center ot Bnrch House
Littleton, New Hampshire 2007- 2015
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fimdraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillard ♦ 2

Bookkeeper: Women's Roral Entrepreneurial Network iWREN^
Beihlehem* NH cnrrent PT employment
Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliadons for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

IVi-Connty Conunimitj Action Programs* Inc.
Dire^ Serriccs/Volnntcer Coordinator: Support Center at Bnrch Hoose
Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 to 2007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Haverhili Area Jnvenile Diversion Program
Woodsnlle, New Hampshire 1999-2001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and educadon

Counselor/Title 1 Teacher: Northern Family institote-Jeflerson Shelter
Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Education

BS in nwwftw Services, Springfield College School of Hnman Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Craduated with 4.0 CPA

AS in Drag and Alcohol Rehabilitation Comueling fDABC Program!
Sonthem Connecticnt Commnnity College, New Haven, €T

Adilitional iSkills- Professional Leadership and Affiliations

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Trtasunr 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, Havcrhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003

♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Individual Member 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Qtizen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2015- current
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997-current
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute current since 1993



REGAN L. PRIDE

SUMMARY

My experience spans the fields of engineering, computer technology, educatkm, and public administration.
Tlus unique combination brings a wide array of knowledge and skUls to the table for your organization. I am a

player, a patient trainer, and adept at interpersonal relations.

REVELANT KNOWLEDGE AND SKILL AREAS

• Confidence in public speaklr^ for business and technical applications, and instnictiooa] settings
• Strong writing skills and interpersonal communication skills, ability to teach others, and build consensus
• Approachable, warm and personable s|yle in teaching classa and interacting with colleagues
• Robust education in mathematics, engin^ng and general science topics
• Fluency with entire Microsoft Office application suite.
• Fluency with AutoCAD computer-aided drafting software
• Familiarity with ArcView CIS software.
• Familiar with Avantc Entierprise Resource Planning software *
• Familiar vrith BMSI fiind accounting and Avhar assessing/tax billing software
• AdqH 81 Macromedia/Adobe Dreamweaver MX web she design software

WORK EXPERIENCE

NORTH COUNTRY COUNCIL REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION, Littleton, NH
TITLE: Planner, 2012-2013 + 2015-2018
Managed solid waste technical assistance program funded by USDA Rural Development. Conducted "Full Cost
Accounting** studies of municipal solid waste department operations. Reviewed and updated operating plans for
municipal solid waste facilities. Organized household hazardous waste collection events. Created and delivered
training programs for solid waste operator certiflcation.. Created pilot programs to reduce & drvcrt food waste
from Infills in 4 communities.

2013-2014

INNOVATIVE STRUCTURAL BUILDING PRODUCTS
TITLE: Project Manager
Perform^ a variety of functions including business plan preparation and product development associated with a
stait-up company in the engineered wood sheathing industry. 1 created engineering drawings, built and tested
prototypes, and assisted in mariceting activities.

2000-Present

ICANTOO ENTERPRISES. Lisbon. NH
TITLE: Owner, Computer Applications Consulting
Assistance and training with business and technical applications. Created customized solutions Involving
AutoCAD, MS Work, MS Excel, MS Access software applications. I also perform web site HTML and CGJ
development, hardware setup, upgrades, and troubleshooting.
Recent clients/projects Include:
•  New England Electric Wire Corp - Implemenlaiion of Avante MRP & APS scheduling software,

computerized WIP labeling system, computer workstation installations, user/operator training.
•  Littleton, NH Senior Softball League - custom programming and support of statistical software
•  Louisiana Corporate Credit Union - Web site design and maintenance.
•  Brammer Creek - Web site design for wholesale food distributor.



2006 - 2012

TOWN OF LISBON, NH. Lisbon. NH
TTTLE: Town Admlnisti;^tor, CPM
l^par^ annual town budgets and performed presentations at budget hearings and town meting. Prepared
annual financial reports (MS-2, MS*4, MS-6) for the town. Generated tax warrants, and water/sewer warrants.
Anal)^ water/sewer revenues and developed rate structure to balance department's budget. Performed the
functions of ftnancial admihistratiQn, personnel management, grant administration, welfare administration,
emergency management, and project management.

1990-2000 & 2004 - 2006
NEW ENGLAND CATHETER CORPORATION. Lisbon, NH
(Subsidiary of New England Wire Technolo^es)
TITLE: Engineer, Medical Products
Performed process engineering support in the manufocture of wire-reinfor^ medical tubing including
equipment specificatiDn, process/procedure development, tooling design, and statistical data analysis.
Developed customized spreadsheets for product design, and manu&cturing process oontrbl.
I was also employed with the parent company as an engineer/CAD operator from 1990 to 2000. While in this
capacity, I led peifonal computer users groups, installed the first Eth^et network in the company engineering
department, and developed computer file management systems iand backup routines.

2002-2004

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT 35, Littleton, NH
TITLE: Distance Learning Coordinator
Tills posHipn involved co|Jid>onition with teachers and staff to develop interactive educational programs
utilizing distance learning/videoconferencing technology. Programs were distributed between three high school
campuses. Duties included setup, configuration, operation and maintenance of videoconferencing endpoints, and
operation of bridge/^teway at central office. I served as webmaster for SAU website. I also performed various
computer support duties.

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS

NH Bureau of Education and Training
CPM Certificate (Certified Pubic Manager)

University of Califomia at Berkeley, Engineering Department
92 semester credits in Mechanical Engineering Major

CONTINimNG EDUCATION

•  NH Certified Public Supervisor program
•  Radvisioo H.232 technician course

•  Six Sigma process control course by Boston Scientific Corp.
•  Extrusion Tbeoiy course at University of Massachusetts. Lowell

PROFESSIONAL & CIVIC ASSOCIATIONS

t Board of Directors, North Country Council Regional Planning Commission,
Bethlehem, NH; 2007-2012. Served as chairman in 2011.

• Grafton-Coos Regional Coordinating Council (for public transit); Littleton. NH; 2009-2012
• Member ofNHMMA.NHGFOA.NHLWAA-2006-2012
• Board of Sclertman, Lisbon, NH March 2000-2006. Served as chairman from 2002 to 2006.
• Board of Directors, Lisbon Main Street, Inc., Lisbon, NH; 2008-2012;
• Economic Restructuring Committee of Lisbon Main Street, Inc., 2002-preseni
• Member of Granite State Distance Learning Network, 2002*2004

REFERENCES

Professional references shall be produced upon request and presented at time of interview.



Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies mclude.

Financial Statements

Payroll
Budgeting

Accounts Payables
Bank Reconciliations

Cash Flow Management

Inventory

Accounts Receivables

Audits

Experience

Fixed Ass^

Sales/Use Tax

Forecasting

TRTXIOUNTY rOMMTTNlTY ArTTON PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. NH 06/2013-Present

mA d^slly CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify perfor^ce goals for Ae ̂ ency Md to
systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, dirert (»^te, rmplement and evaluate thefinancialmanagementsystemsandactivitresoftheAgencywrthabudgetofSlSM.

.  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outsrde

.  !S^mmtS°orthe senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs. tn:

.  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and ̂ g^ Drrectors. Plan, drrect,coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tn.County CAPS dtvistons.

.  Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promoUons and salary

.  Fw^d^Mpervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri^lounty CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.

.  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and momtor mvestmenU associated
with each property.

•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017) j

.  Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroU, and accountspayable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets. cl u ,1

.  Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements includmg Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reoorts, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis. • j ^

. Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reportmg and expensetracking to support periodic monitoring's by fimders and auditors.
•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled penothc^y.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reportmg; and implementmg

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)



RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:

KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. fgk/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for enstiring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals.

•  Assisted and responded to auditors* requests on armual audit.
•  Filed finnchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accoimting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN Pierce College. Concord, NH



Gerald F. Mllllken, Jr.

Executive Summaiy;

Enthustastic. dedicated and hardworking professional, offering over 20 years of
broad-based experience in Project Direction, policy and procedural development,
training & development budget administraten and business operations within fest-
paced environment

Experience:

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Program Manager / Director Weatherfzatlon & Employment Programs

Berfin. NH
4-1-13 to present

Provide leadership and oversight to program's operations, budgets and reporting; -
Coordinate and Integrate programs' acthrities.
Hire, supervise and manage staff, tnduding in-house and Itinerant employees.
Prepare grants and proposals.
Develop, prepare arid Implement program budgets, narratives.
Review and recondle program finandal reports for reimbursement.
Interact with program mor^ors, outside auditors. Federal agency auditors and others In
review of program activities. compUance and finandal acoountabUlty
Develop new programs and funding streams as appropriate.

Tri-County Community Actton Program. Inc.
Ciew Chloff State Certified Energy Auditor Berlin, NH 5-1-05 to 4 -1 -15

Northern Express Eatery. Inc. North Conway, NH
President I General Manager 11-1-2002 to 5-15-2005
Estimated food and beverage costs, requisitioning and purchasing suppties
Assisted subordinates In Identifying and resotving problems.
Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
activrties.

Directed hiring and assignment of personnel.
Investigated and resolved food quality and service complaints.
Maintained a!) records and produced reports.
Executed daily operations of restaurant management.

Hatfield-Reynolds Electric an IBS. Inc. Company Phoenix. AZ
Project Manager 5-15-2000 to 10-30-2002
AppBed knowledge of the constmction trade In the daily operation of duties.
Reviewed project propo^s to determine time frame, funding limitations, procedures
for Accomplishing project, staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.



BO Enterprises, Inc. Lake Havasu City, AZ
PmMenti Genera/Manager 6-1-1994 to 6-16-2000
Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC. INC. and changed the name.
Contracted to perform specified construction work across the state of Arizona in
accordance with architect's plans, t)lueprint8, codes and other spedfications.
Estimated costs of materials. latx)r and use of equipment required to futfill provisions of
contract and prepared t>ids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terms of contract.
Assisted 8ulx>rdinates in identifying and resolving problems.
Demonstrated effective present^n skills.

Education:

NHTI Concord
Associates Degree in Electronic Technology 1985
Theory

LRCC Laoonia
Electrical Systems Installation & Maintenance, 1988
Required for Journeymen electrical testing.

Additional Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing for non- profits. To enhance my position on the
board of at Children Unlimited. Inc.
Successfully completed GE's prestigibus "SIX SIGMA" management course in 2001
WhBe Employed with
Hatfield-Reynolds Electric an lES, tic. Company Phoenix. AZ.
Successfully completed training courses and seminars for,lead safe work practices.
asbestos awareness. OSHA 30, CPR.electrical code updates.
Successfully completed Business management classes in AZ
During the 1995-2001.
Suco^ssfQUycompleted training and testing to be a NH State certified Energy Auditor
in 2006.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc., Conway NH"Non- Profif
Board member Berlin Revitalizatlon Committee. Berlin NH "Non- Profit"
Past member of the advisory board and co<lesignerfor the Myotonic Dystrophy
Foundations first website.

Previous owner and webmaster for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

License:

Held an Electrical Journeyman license NH
hteld an Electrical Contractor License AZ

References: Available upon request.



Nathan H. Mills

Professional Summary and Skills

Operations Manager with experience and oversite of Financial, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for non-profit organizations and small businesses. Professional, flexible with proven
analytical skills. Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound business judgement and
customer service.

✓ Business Development Planning & Budgeting
Sage/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA
Asset Management

Extensive daily use of Microsoft Excel
Contract Negotiation, Administration & Compliance

•/

y

y

y

PROFESSIONAL EXPRBENCE

Division Operations Manager
Tri-County Community Action Program, Berlin, New Hampshire

Staff and Sub-contractor Management
Client & Vendor Relations

Volunteer Relations

Certificate, LEAN Six Sigma Green Belt, USM 2016
Certificate, Project Management, USM 2014

Since April 2019

Operational, Administrative and Fiscal oversite for Government and Utility funded programs that
provide home efficiency, insulation and heating system upgrades to income eligible households in
Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties, New Hampshire.

• Operational oversight of Utility HEA and HPwES, and Federal DOE and DHHS low Income Weatherlzation, Heat System
repair and replacement programs.

• Oversee all aspects of Program Operations and Project Management Including; program budget development and
authorization of expenditures according to contracted budget agreements, client eligibility and program compliance,
hiring training, supervising and evaluating department staff.

Inside Production Manager
TC Hafford Basement Systems, Wells, ME 2018

Inside Production Manager responsible for managing scheduling and close out of dry basement
systems installs.

• Ualson with homeowner throughout scheduling, Install and closeout processes. Liaison with sales team and Outside
Production Manager to ensure proposal, Instatlabon and material costs met client expectations, company standards
and warranty requirements for dry basement systems.

Project Manager
PATCO Construction, Sanford, ME 2016-2018

Project Manager responsible for managing residential home construction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and construction processes.

• Liaison to homeowner throughout entire construction process from contract signing to closing. Weekly telephone
update and change order estimate and management. Maintain master schedule on Builder Trend project management
software. Schedule sub-contractors. Inspect work to project spec.. Issue rework and approve Invoices for payment.
Job cost oversite, materials ordering and Inventory management.

Director, Housing and Energy Services
The Opportunity Alliance, South Portland, ME

2009-2016



Business, Fiscal, Operational and Compliance responsibility for federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efficiency and insulation
upgrades to income eligible households in Cumberland and York County, Maine.

• Contract, Operational and Rscal oversight of Federal DOE and DHHS low Income Weatherizatlon, Central Heat
Improvement and Efficiency Maine Energy Conservation Programs.

•

• Oversee all sub-grantee contractual responsibilities of client intake, certification and benefit determination, program
Integrity and compliance for Federal DHHS UHEAP Grant, providing home heating benefits to approximately 3,500
low-income Cumberland County households annually.

• Oversee all aspects of Program and Project Management induding; client eligibility and program compliance of NMLS
Licensed Agency Lending for HUD, MSHA, Maine DECD and Cumberland County Community Development. Program
funding supported home repair, home renovation and energy effidency upgrades of very low to moderate income
households in Cumberland and York County.

Business Manager 2006 - 2009
SmartCatalog, Portland, ME

Managed all business activity for national cataloger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and universities in the United States and Canada.

Accounting Associate 2004-2006
Southern Maine Agency on Aging, Scarborough, ME

Responsible for business office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position, I
was accounting liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

Retaii Cataiog and Advertising Photographer 1998 - 2004
Howell-Ltd., Portland, ME

Managing studio photographer for New England's first digital commercial photography studio
responsible for project management, process workflow, and capacity and demand management.

Education

Bachelor of Arts, Geography
Unh^rsity of Maine, Farmington, 1983

Continuing Studies, Business, Accounting, Project Management and Human Resources
University ofSouthern Maine, ongoing

COMMUNnV SERVICE

Biddeford School Committee, Vice Chairman

• Co-Chairman, Curriculum Committee; Finance Committee; Personnel Committee; Chief Negotiator (Collective
Bargaining) Elected to consecutive 2 year terms in 2006 and 2008. Served during period that school system
undertook a $30 million dollar renovation of Biddeford High School.

Central America Volunteer work
Heredia, Costa Rica 8i San Bernadino Guatemala

• Travel to Costa Rica in 2006 8i Guatemala in 2008 with a volunteer team to build a timber frame vocational center and
water filtration system.

Re^rences available upon request


